
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, July 19, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Director Jeff Hart. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

CONSENT 

1. Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting July 6, 2021.  (CCD) 

2. Adopt a resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase one (1) John Deere 310L T4 

Backhoe/Loader (TWU) 

REGULAR 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 

Be respectful of the Board of Directors, city staff, and the public by refraining from abusive 

conduct, personal charges, or verbal attacks. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

3. Adopt a Resolution making appointments to various boards and commissions. [Advertising & 

Promotion Commission; Airport Authority; Board of Adjustment; City Beautiful 

Commission; Civil Service; Electric Board of Review; Heating & Air Conditioning Board of 

Review; Library Board, Planning Commission; and Plumbing Board of Review] (CCD)  

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, August 2, 2021 

ADJOURN 

2021 City Calendar 

Gateway Farmer’s Market – Every Tuesday, Thursday and Saturday 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting July 6, 2021.  

(CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: July 19, 2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Rescheduled Regular Meeting of the Board of 

Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Tuesday, July 06, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts, Assistant Mayor Ward 3 Steven 

Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 Director Barbara Miner and Ward 6 Director 

Jeff Hart. 

ALSO, PRESENT: City Manager E. Jay Ellington, City Attorney George Matteson, and Deputy 

City Clerk Jenny Narens. 

Ward 2 Director Laney Harris arrived at 6:03 PM. 

ABSENT:  City Clerk Heather Soyars 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Director Barbara Miner 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (CCD) 

2. Presentation of 17 substandard structures to be condemned by Public Works Director Tyler 

Richards 

CONSENT 

Director Hart made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Assistant Mayor 

Hollibush.  The motion carried and the following items were approved: 

3. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting June 21, 2021.  (CCD) 

4. Resolution No. 2021-34 authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract with NewGen 

Strategies to perform a water and sewer rate study. (TWU) Executive Director JD Phillips 

REGULAR 

5. Consider the following action concerning substandard structures: 

Conduct a Public Hearing regarding the condemnation of 17 substandard residential 

structures.  Mayor Brown opened the Public Hearing. 

No one came forward and Mayor Brown closed the Public Hearing. 



 

Resolution No. 2021-35 to condemn 17 substandard structures [804 & 806 Ash, 1402 Betty, 

614 Charles, 1505 East, 521 Euclid, 902 Euclid, 8 Ferguson, 902 Jackson, 1007 Jackson, 839 

Laurel, 204 Marguerite, 2109 Marietta, 221 Martha, 1603 Morrison, 701 Orleans, 1205 

Prince, and 2120 Walter]. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

 

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this resolution. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 21-2021 rezoned property located at 1925 Line Ferry Road from M-2 General 

Manufacturing to R-3 Low-Density Residential. (Ward 1) (Blair) (PWD-Planning) City 

Planner Mary Beck 

 

Motion to read the ordinance the first time in abbreviated form made by Director Brewer, Seconded 

by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Seconded by Director Miner. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third and final time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 



 

7. Ordinance No. 22-2021 rezoned property located at 2620 Jefferson Avenue from R-2 Single-

Family Residential to R-3 Low-Density Residential. (Ward 5) (Harvey) (PWD-Planning) City 

Planner Mary Beck 

 

Motion to read the ordinance the first time in abbreviated form made by Director Brewer, Seconded 

by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third and final time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Miner. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

 

8. Ordinance No. 23-2021 purchased kennels for the new Animal Care and Adoption Center. 

(Ward 2) (ACAC) Brenda Williamson Animal Care and Adoption Center Interim Director  

 

Motion to read the ordinance the first time in abbreviated form made by Director Hart, Seconded 

by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Miner, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Hollibush. 



 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third and final time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Miner. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

   

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

 Freeman’s Powder Coating, 2007 East Street, was concerned because the state and the city 

stopped by and asked them to move the cars they were working on.    

 Director Roberts introduced Kristine Barron, the new Bi-State Justice Building 

Maintenance Manager. 

 Director Hart thanked Public Works Director Tyler Richards for all his hard work. 

 Director Miner thanked the citizens who kept their lawns in good condition but wanted to 

remind citizens you could not place the yard clippings in the streets. 

 Bernice Dinkins, 204 Eastside Drive, asked if she needed to call the state or the city when 

the grass around Arkansas Bridge along Eastside Drive needed to be cut. 

 

No one else came forward. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board entered Executive Session at 6:54 PM. 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 7:01 PM. 

 

9. Resolution No. 2021-36 appointed Natasha Crabbe, M. Carmen Mauldin, and reappointed 

Jamie Simmons and Danny Gordon to the Historic District Commission. (CCD)  

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   



 

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, August 2, 2021 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.   

The meeting adjourned at 7:03 PM. 

APPROVED this the 19th day of July 2021. 

______________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase one (1) 

John Deere 310L T4 Backhoe/Loader (TWU) 

AGENDA DATE: July 19, 2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities 

PREPARED BY: Oris Kemp, Operations Manager 

REQUEST: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase one (1) John Deere 

310L T4 Backhoe/Loader.  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None needed. 

SUMMARY: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase one (1) John Deere 

310L T4 Backhoe/Loader in an amount not to exceed $76,980.00 with 

the Arkansas portion being $28,374.83.  Two (2) vendors picked up bid 

packages for the project and two (2) vendors bid on the project.  Stribling 

Equipment, LLC, of Texarkana, Arkansas was the apparent low bidder 

with a low bid of $76,980.00.  This will replace a 1993 John Deere 

backhoe/loader.  This project was budgeted in the Utility’s 2020-2021 

Budget in the Equipment Acquisition Fund. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $76,980.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $76,980.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$23,374.83 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Texarkana Water Utilities staff recommends approval. 

EXHIBITS: ATTH 01 Bid Summary 

ATTH 02 Bid Proposal 

ATTH 03 Equipment Specification 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, upon advertisement a low bid in the amount of $76,980.00 was 

submitted by Stribling Equipment, LLC, to Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) for a John 

Deere 310L T4 Backhoe/Loader; and 

WHEREAS, the funds were budgeted and the Arkansas portion of the same is 

$28,374.83; and  

WHEREAS, the City Manager and the Utilities Director recommend approval; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager and TWU are authorized to purchase one 

(1) John Deere 310L T4 Backhoe/Loader as the terms set further above.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of July 2021. 

 

 

 

 ______________________________ 

  Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 









 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution making appointments to various boards and 

commissions. [Advertising & Promotion Commission; Airport 

Authority; Board of Adjustment; City Beautiful Commission; Civil 

Service; Electric Board of Review; Heating & Air Conditioning Board 

of Review; Library Board, Planning Commission; and Plumbing Board 

of Review] (CCD)  

AGENDA DATE: July 19, 2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Appoint members to various boards and commissions. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Make appointments to various boards and commissions: 

 
Advertising & Promotion 

Commission 

Meredith Mills 

Appointment 

 

03/21/2021----2025 

Airport Authority  Ray Abernathy 

Reappointment 

 

05/14/2021----2024 

Board of Adjustment  Boots Thomas 

Bonnie Auck 

I. Don Nelson  

Reappointments  

 

02/17/2020----2023 

02/17/2021----2024 

02/17/2021----2024 

City Beautiful Commission  Connie Magness 

Appointment 

 

(no set terms) 

Civil Service Commission  Pete Cheatham  

Reappointment 

 

04/2021----2027 

Electric Board of Review Wade Williams 

Thomas Thornsberry 

Reappointments  

 

03/06/2020----2022 

03/06/2021----2023 

Heating & Air Conditioning 

Board of Review 

Jeff Castle 

Thomas Bui 

Charlie Cook 

11/21/2019----2022 

11/21/2019----2022 

11/21/2020----2023 



Reappointments 

 

Library Board  Junie Young 

Gary Nutter 

Reappointments 

 

01/15/2020----2026 

01/15/2020----2026 

Planning Commission Boots Thomas 

Bertha Dunn 

Adger Smith 

George Coker 

Jason Dupree 

Reappointments 

 

05/06/2020----2023 

05/06/2020----2023 

05/06/2021----2024 

05/06/2021----2024 

05/06/2021----2024 

 

Plumbing Board of Review Jackie Kirkland 

Cliff Roberts 

Reappointments 

11/21/2019----2022 

11/21/2019----2022 

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Boards and Commission member lists, applications 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, vacancies exist on various boards and commissions; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary that appointments be made to fill the vacant positions:  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointment is hereby approved:  

 

     

Board/Commission: Appointee: Term: 

 
Advertising & Promotion Commission 

 

Meredith Mills 03/21/2021----2025 

Airport Authority  Ray Abernathy 

 

05/14/2021----2024 

Board of Adjustment  Boots Thomas 

Bonnie Auck 

I. Don Nelson  

 

02/17/2020----2023 

02/17/2021----2024 

02/17/2021----2024 

City Beautiful Commission  Connie Magness 

 

(no set terms) 

Civil Service Commission  Pete Cheatham  

 

04/2021----2027 

Electric Board of Review Wade Williams 

Thomas Thornsberry 

  

03/06/2020----2022 

03/06/2021----2023 

Heating & Air Conditioning Board of Review Jeff Castle 

Thomas Bui 

Charlie Cook 

 

11/21/2019----2022 

11/21/2019----2022 

11/21/2020----2023 

Library Board  Junie Young 

Gary Nutter 

 

01/15/2020----2026 

01/15/2020----2026 

Planning Commission Boots Thomas 

Bertha Dunn 

Adger Smith 

George Coker 

Jason Dupree 

05/06/2020----2023 

05/06/2020----2023 

05/06/2021----2024 

05/06/2021----2024 

05/06/2021----2024 

 

Plumbing Board of Review Jackie Kirkland 

Cliff Roberts 

 

11/21/2019----2022 

11/21/2019----2022 



PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of July, 2021. 

 

 

______________________________ 

                            Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

  

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



ADVERTISING & PROMOTION COMMISSION 
Authorized by A.C.A. 26-75-605---608, and Texarkana Code 25-20 

4 – YEAR TERMS 
 

 Appointment Term Date Term Ward 
     

VACANCY -  
 

03/21/2017----2021   

     
VACANCY -  

 
03/21/2018----2022 
For the unexpired 

term of Claude 
Moore 

  

     
Brandon Cogburn 
At Large Position 

#3 Woodridge Road 
903-276-1547 

Resolution No. 2019-10 
Reappointment 

 

03/21/2018----2022 
 

2 6 

     
Sandy Varner 

7002 Tall Oaks Drive 
903-826-8090 

Resolution No. 2021-29 
Reappointment 

 

03/21/2019----2023 2 6 

     
Les Munn 

5327 East Broad Street 
903-826-2000 

Resolution No. 2021-29 
Reappointment 

 

03/21/2019----2023 1 6 

     
Director Ulysses Brewer 

P.O. Box 235 
870-773-0276 
870-571-6125 

Resolution No. 2021-1 
Appointment 

 

 1 4 

     
Director Barbara Miner 

7 Wood Place 
870-774-9976 

Resolution No. 2021-1 
Reappointment 

 

 2 5 

     
 

 



















































Planning Commission  
 

Authorized by A.C.A. 14-56-404----408, and Texarkana, Arkansas Code 19-16----19 

3 – Year Terms 
 

 Appointment Term Date Terms Ward 

     

Clyde “Boots” Thomas 

5807 Deerwood Drive 

870-773-6919 home 

903-908-4111 cell 

boots@cableone.net  

Resolution No. 2017-23 

Reappointment 

 

05/06/2017----2020 7 6 

     

Bertha Dunn 

2704 East 15th Street 

870-773-8287 home 

903-277-8763 cell 

berthacallahan@windstream.net 

Resolution No. 2017-23 

Reappointment 

 

05/06/2017----2020 3 3 

     

Adger Smith 

Chairman 

308 Meadows Road 

903-824-4924 

adgersperf@aol.com  

Resolution No. 2018-4 

Reappointment 

 

05/06/2018----2021 5 3 

     

George Coker 

1201 Forest Acres Circle 

870-779-0203 home 

903-826-5240 cell 

geonancoker@windstream.net  

Resolution No. 2018-21 

Reappointment 

 

05/06/2018----2021 5 1 

     

Jason Dupree 

416 Meadows Road 

870-774-1925 home 

903-838-8574 work 

jdupr21@aol.com  

Resolution No. 2018-21 

Reappointment 

 

05/06/2018----2021 4 3 

     

Anderson Neal, Jr. 

Vice Chairman 

7106 Tall Oaks 

501-655-1335 

an8613@gmail.com 

Resolution No. 2019-43 

Reappointment 

 

05/06/2019----2022 2 6 

     

Randall R. Hickerson, DDS 

2805 Forest Avenue  

870-773-1603 home 

903-748-1603 cell 

phickerson@valornet.com 

Resolution No. 2019-43 

Reappointment 

 

05/06/2019----2022 2 1 

 

mailto:boots@cableone.net
mailto:berthacallahan@windstream.net
mailto:adgersperf@aol.com
mailto:geonancoker@windstream.net
mailto:jdupr21@aol.com
mailto:an8613@gmail.com
mailto:an8613@gmail.com
mailto:phickerson@valornet.com













	Top
	1.	minutes
	item__07192021_ccd_minutes
	07062021_minutes

	2.	Purchase one (1) John Deere 310L T4 Backhoe/Loader
	John Deere 310L T4 Backhoe Loader
	item_2_07192021_Resolution for John Deere Backhoe Loader
	ATTH 03 Equipment Specification
	ATTH 02 Bid Proposal
	ATTH 01 Bid Summary

	3.	Boards and Commissions
	item_3_07192021_boards and commissions
	item_3_07192021_Resolution for appointments to various boards
	item_3_07192021_AandP
	item_3_07192021_Airport
	item_3_07192021_BOA
	item_3_07192021_City Beautiful
	item_3_07192021_Civil Service
	item_3_07192021_Electirc
	item_3_07192021_Heating & Air
	item_3_07192021_Library
	item_3_07192021_Plumbing
	item_3_07192021_Planning Commission

	Bottom

